
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 
AGENDA 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING 
July 9, 2015 – 8:30 am 

  

Meeting Location: Washington Public Utility Districts Association, 212 Union AVE SE, Olympia, WA  98501 

Agenda Item Action Page Time 
 

A) ADMINISTRATION    
1. Call to Order   8:30 
2. Welcome and Introductions   8:31 
3. Approve Agenda: Cecilia Gardener Action 1 8:35 
4. Meeting Minutes for May 8, 2015: Barbara Smith  Action 5 8:38 

B) CONTRACTING    
1. DWSRF Project Completion Extension Request: Jill Nordstrom Action  8:40 
2. DWSRF Correction to Interest Rate: Jill Nordstrom Action  8:45 

Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 9:00 a.m. 

NEXT BUSINESS MEETING SCHEDULED: August 7, 2015, Dept. of Commerce, 1011 Plum ST SE, Olympia, WA 98504 
 
Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE, Olympia, WA 98504-2525.  
Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-2744 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be 
accessible to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days’ notice to the Public Works Board at 
(360) 725-2744. 
 





TAB A 
ADMINISTRATION 





Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 1 of 10 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
May 8, 2015 

Department of Commerce, Columbia Room, 1011 Plum Street SE, Olympia, WA  98504 

Board Members Guests Present: Staff Present: Present: Absent: 
Stan Finkelstein, Chair Mary Margaret Haugen Blair Burroughs, Washington 

Association of Sewer and Water 
Districts 

Jacquie Andresen 
JC Baldwin Matt Rasmussen Mark Barkley 
Ted Carlson   Carrie Calleja 
Pam Carter  John Kounts, Washington Public Utility 

Districts Association 
Ann Campbell 

Jerry Cummins  Cindy Chavez 
Ed Hildreth  Steve Lindstrom, Snohomish-King 

Water-Sewer District Coalition 
Steve Dunk 

Scott Hutsell  Chris Gagnon 
Diane Pottinger   Jeff Nejedly, Department of Ecology Cecilia Gardener 
Bubba Scott   Isaac Huang 
Lisa Wellman   Lynn Kohn 
   Jill Nordstrom 
   Rodney Orr 
   Cathi Read 
   Jacki Skaught 
   Barbara Smith 
 
ADMINISTRATION 

1) Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. 

2) Welcome and Introductions.  

3) ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to approve the agenda as presented. Ed Hildreth seconded the 
motion. Discussion: Lisa Wellman read the following statement into the record: 

I will not be voting to approve the agenda for this meeting. 
 
I was extremely disappointed to learn that we were not going to be using this valuable meeting time 
to share thoughts about the planning for our future. It’s been said a number of times over the past 
several months that there’s every likelihood the board will need to evolve into something new or end 
entirely. This is challenging work and requires commitment, engagement, and discussion. 
 
I suggested the communications committee might get started on the offsite over a month ago and 
was told there was a traditional procedure for developing the offsite. 
I waited to participate in the planning. I am still waiting. 
 
Now we’re at our final meeting before the offsite and still not talking to one another. I’m told there 
will be a survey. Then the Executive Committee will generate an agenda etc. The way it’s always 
been done it I guess. But I see this as exceptional times and a crisis for the board and the 
communities we represent regarding their infrastructure projects and I expected exceptional 
engagement. 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 2 of 10 

 
If the offsite is to take us to a place of value there’s a lot to be discussed. 
• Who must be there and why. 
• A design for the meeting structure and a high level agenda. 
• We must create an experience so we don’t wind up with a laundry list of a dozen or more next 

steps but not a coherent strategic course of action 
• We need to set clear realistic goals 
• Define action steps explicitly 
• Elicit and include the views of major stakeholder groups  
• Examine and make informed projections about economic and political realities 
 
I could go on. 
 
The point is I’m not seeing a path from here to there. 
 
And what I do see is symptomatic of the functioning of this board and I find it very disturbing. I don’t 
think we’re setting ourselves up to respond to the current economic and political situation. I don’t 
see us engaged. 
 
As Senator Haugen said to me in a recent discussion, “I have no interest in going to a meeting that 
does not achieve something.” I agree. I hope you all do as well. 
 
Lisa Wellman 
Public Works Board 
Representing the General Public 
 
MOTION APPROVED 8-1 (Yea, Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, and 
Scott; NAY, Lisa Wellman). 

4) ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to approve the April 3, 2015, meeting minutes as presented. JC 
Baldwin seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 9-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, 
Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Scott, and Wellman).  

5) Assistant Director Update: Mark Barkley updated the Board on the Division reorganization. It is now 
fully implemented, and the office move is complete. There is still a lot of work to do in regards to 
transition of responsibilities, training, and development. The Division is planning an open house in 
the near future for the Board and stakeholders. Barkley stated that we are here to support the 
Board’s efforts, and appreciate the Board’s support of us during the past six months’ transition. He 
has submitted his application for the permanent Assistant Director position. The hiring process 
should take about a month. He stated that he appreciates the Board’s support during his interim 
appointment.  

 
CONTRACTING 

1) DWSRF Contracts Completion Extension Requests: Jill Nordstrom presented a DWSRF time extension 
request from Lewis County for their Vader Water Distribution Systems Improvement project. 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 3 of 10 

Contractor requests an extension through 08/31/15 due to multiple factors causing meter 
replacement installation delays. The project is 90% complete. ACTION: Scott Hutsell moved to 
approve the extension requests as presented. Lisa Wellman seconded the motion.  
 
Jill Nordstrom presented another DWSRF time extension request: from Raymond for their Water 
Treatment Plant Disinfection project. Contractor requests an extension through 10/31/15 in order to 
finish approved supplemental related project elements with remaining contract funds. Project is 
95% complete. MOTION APPROVED 9-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Hildreth, Hutsell, 
Pottinger, Scott, and Wellman). 

2) DWSRF Quarterly Contract Status Report: Jill Nordstrom updated the Board on the status of DWSRF 
contracts from January 1, 2015, through March 31, 2015. The Board discussed the status of the 
transition, and the legislation relating to the movement of the program from Commerce to the 
Department of Health. The bill is stalled right now, but staff is continuing to move forward on the 
transition, in anticipation of the bill passing. 

3) PWB Contract Status Report: Ann Campbell put the numbers together last week in a memo to the 
Board, and discovered this week that the numbers are not fully correct. Specifically 95 + 7 is not 112, 
it’s 102. Jacquie Andresen reported that we have not had any new contracts come in this quarter. 
Fifteen contracts closed out last quarter. $22 million went out the door last quarter. This time last 
year, the draws were $19 million.  

 
POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT 

1) Public Works Board Action Plan Update: Cecilia Gardener discussed the Division reorganization. The 
CAU was disbanded, and those staff were re-assigned to either the Boards Unit or the Federal 
Programs Unit. Staff brought into the Boards Unit are: Carrie Calleja, Jacquie Andresen, and Missy 
Lipparelli. They all have the contract experience. Existing Board staff haven’t managed contracts for 
7 years, and the contracts folks do not have the Technical Assistance experience, so now we are in 
the midst of cross-training everyone. We are all working really close together to ensure a smooth 
transition. Gardener stated that she appreciates that staff are working so closely together.  
 
Gardener then presented the updated activities of the staff and Board on the Public Works Board 
Action Plan. This task has been transitioned to Barbara Smith, following the staff reorganization. 
Gardener stated that we have completed almost everything from the last retreat. We are not on 
TVW, and we are probably never going to be on TVW. TVW has limited capacity, and is unable to 
accommodate all requests for airing of events.  They continuously review items for relevance to the 
public and their capacity.  The training modules are not quite complete yet, but they are nearly 
complete. 
 
Bubba Scott asked that the WPUDA water workshop be added to the calendar. It is the same time as 
WASWD, and is held in Leavenworth. 

2) Legislative Update:  

a) Bills Being Tracked: Cecilia Gardener presented an update on legislative activity. Every bill, 
including those that did not pass cutoff, were reintroduced and retained by resolution on April 
29, 2015, into the new session. However, the Governor has restricted activities to those related 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 4 of 10 

education, transportation, or the budget.   The budget writers are behind closed doors, and 
there is no movement on any of the reintroduced bills. We can discuss at the retreat if we want 
to continue to move the policy bill we introduced this year forward to the next session. 

b) Fund Update: Cecilia Gardener presented an update on the fund. The letter submitted to OFM 
regarding our deficit caused quite a stir. There were many legislators who did not understand 
the depth of our financial situation. Staff thinks it created some pressure on the hill to return 
the fund to a positive balance. The Board discussed the implications of the bonding bill.  
 
Diane Pottinger said that three different legislators stated that they did not fully understand the 
negative state of the fund when she talked to them. She is discouraged by that. She thinks we 
are not getting our message out.  
 
Stan Finkelstein replied that we were hopeful that the various stakeholder associations would 
marshal their constituents to lobby their legislators. Board members and staff have talked to 
legislators. But it takes the groundswell from cities and counties to really sway those legislators. 
Board staff was told to not sensationalize the state of the fund.  
 
Jerry Cummins stated that he agrees with Finkelstein to a certain extent. He has also talked to 
his legislators. He thinks a certain naiveté expressed by the legislators is just their way of skirting 
around an issue. They understand exactly how dire the straits are that the account is in; they are 
just planning to go into their caucus and vote the way their leadership dictates.  
 
Gardener responded to Pottinger, stating that we have done everything that we can at this 
point, taking into considerations our limitations as state employees.  As state employees, and 
governor appointees, we cannot contradict the Governor nor put the Governor in a bad light. As 
private citizens, you can do whatever you want, as long as you are clear you are not wearing 
your Public Works Board hat. There appears to be fatigue regarding protecting the fund, the 
mentality right now is “Oh well, it was a good program, but all programs come to an end.” We 
have pushed the envelope as far as we’re allowed to push the envelope.  
 
Pottinger asked why the districts aren’t creating a groundswell about this. Gardener replied that 
in the past six years there has not been a hue and cry. They’ve just taken the hit and complained 
about it.  
 
Pam Carter stated that people are focused on education and mental health. We’ve been giving 
the message about how importance this is. That letter was a shocking piece, and was a really 
good thing to have, to point out that if we go away, what will happen. They hear all the time 
people saying things are horrible. Sometimes it’s hard to get their attention about our particular 
horribleness. 
 
Stan Finkelstein stated that the interest rate right now is pretty low, and the differential is only 
1%. Traditionally, the differential has been closer to 4%. It’s hard to get anyone’s attention over 
1%. If you’re an elected official, all you’re really concerned with is how much do I have to raise 
rates by? If I don’t have to raise my rates much, then it doesn’t generate much response. This is 
why he thinks there isn’t enough motivation to generate that groundswell from the locals. 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 5 of 10 

 
Scott Hutsell stated that his communication with his legislators has been basically telling them 
they are wrong. They acknowledge this. The legislators know. They are just being squashed by 
the leadership, and being made to toe the party line.  
 
Blair Burroughs, from the Washington Association of Sewer and Water Districts, stated that he is 
crafting a piece for their quarterly newsletter. His lobbyist said it is too inflammatory, and sent it 
back to him for editing.   
 
Pam Carter asked if Burroughs or someone else in the room knows what sort of pressure is 
coming out of the associations? Burroughs replied that nothing concrete came out of that. It’s 
been more individual efforts. Carter asked if he was aware of any business associations making 
it a priority. Burroughs replied no. Stan Finkelstein interjected that the business communities 
are putting all their eggs in the Transportation budget, and they don’t want to rock the boat 
with the Public Works Trust Fund.  
 
John Kounts stated that this is the biggest and the worst threat to the fund in 30 years. We have 
gone to bat, we’ve said to our own folks “Here is what the senate budget does, here are the 
bullets, please call your legislators, not just leadership.” It’s very frustrating because people 
have gotten so cynical about the legislature doing anything positive with the fund. If they kill the 
PWTF, later on they are probably going to have to build something else that will likely look just 
like the PWTF. 
 
Diane Pottinger stated that we need to change the message about how this PR effort is going 
out. Cecilia Gardener stated that at this point, there is nothing we can do.  We have been asked 
to stand down. 
 
Lisa Wellman stated that we don’t see any trust from the public for letting the legislature touch 
the tax structure. Public sentiment is much more in favor of education, and not in terms of 
understanding infrastructure issues. Cecilia Gardener replied that nobody cares unless it’s 
broken. For transportation, when they put a huge surge of resources in transportation, you can 
see the improvement. When you improve your water and your sewer, there is no visible 
tangible change to the public. No one cares until it’s broken. It will probably take another 
catastrophic event to get anyone to pay attention.  
 
Finkelstein stated that he thinks we make a mistake if we try to recreate the PWAA with 
different funding sources. He thinks we need to look at assisting local governments with training 
and alternative funding to meet their needs. Providing technical assistance, overseeing access to 
funding sources, and the like. It’s not going to be what it was. When we have the water coming 
out of the faucet, the average water user in Tacoma doesn’t have a clue about their new 
filtration project.  
 
Pam Carter stated that we even had the I-5 Bridge go down in Skagit County and there’s not any 
more interest in infrastructure. They’re not even funding fire fighting for the upcoming fire 
season. 
 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 6 of 10 

Ann Campbell stated that this is an awesome discussion to get us geared up and thinking about 
retreat topics. She stated that she would really like us to get away from being a bank of some 
sort that only services very specific client needs. She thinks we need to do something that’s 
wholly different, like technical assistance.  
 
Jeff Nejedly from the Department of Ecology stated that the Centennial Clean Water Fund is 
proposed to be cut in half. This is the fund Ecology uses for the smallest and most distressed 
communities. Nejedly stated that it looks like we will have no Centennial money next year. Mark 
Barkley asked Nejedly what projects does the fund specifically assist. Nejedly replied that about 
two-thirds of it goes to small hardship communities for wastewater construction.  
 
Lisa Wellman stated that she thinks it’s funny that the State is wooing all this manufacturing to 
the state, without realizing that infrastructure is what is required to make this successful. 
Gardener replied that she thinks they do realize it, but that they are just ignoring the issue.  
 
Steve Lindstrom from the Snohomish-King Water-Sewer District Coalition stated that it’s all 
about Process. It’s really hard to win a soccer match when all of your players are trained as 
goalies. We’re not used to this kind of inflamed rhetoric to get what we want. That particular 
way of doing business is awkward for us. He talked about the idea of the “Cognitive Miser” – 
people only learn what they have to learn in order to support the position they are being forced 
to take.  

c) Budget Update: Cindy Chavez presented the Board with updated budget figures. The report that 
she talked about last month had to wait until the fiscal month closed in order to provide actual 
figures. Diane has asked this to be posted on the website so she can link to it. The Board 
discussed changing the terms to “plain speak” for the average reader versus accounting terms.  

d) Retreat Planning discussion: Cecilia Gardener stated that we have secured the site for the 
Retreat – we will be at the WPUDA building for two full days. We have a facilitator, Anita Page, 
who worked with the Local Government Division on the reorganization. Gardener thinks she’s 
very good and will help the Board to think in very different terms: What is really needed out 
there? What can we accomplish with the resources we have?  
 
Pam Carter would like a refresher on what happened a few years ago when the Board was asked 
to reinvent the program? Why did that happen? What process was used? What were the 
outcomes? She would like to know what happened before, and why it didn’t fly. Gardener 
replied that we were directed to do a modernization, and we did it over the course of a year.  
Stan Finkelstein thinks we need to step back. If the legislature takes all our money, both tax 
sources and repayments, what is the result? We do not have any indication of what the unmet 
infrastructure needs are at the local level. Diane Pottinger replied that the Department of Health 
is doing a statewide, comprehensive needs survey right now. 
 
It was asked “What is a bond bank? Can the legislature touch the bond bank?” Finkelstein 
replied, no. A bond bank is when the state uses their credit rating to allow a large number of 
jurisdictions to access credit at a lower cost through the State.  It is not a fund of money that can 
be swept. 
 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 7 of 10 

Pottinger asked what if the Board became a bank? Can we do something like that? Finkelstein 
replied that we would need to capitalize it from State sources.  
 
Pam Carter asked how does it work elsewhere in the country? Are there other examples? 
 
Lisa Wellman stated that she has - in the past 8 years – been incredibly impressed by the 
Department of Commerce’s commitment to their communities and institutions around the 
state. What is the role that the Board will play without funding? What is the purpose of the 
Board going forward? Staff can handle technical assistance just fine without the Board.  
 
Pam Carter asked if the point of the discussion is to figure out a way to perpetuate ourselves or 
to address infrastructure needs?  
 
Stan Finkelstein thinks the legislature is more interested in the latter than the former. If you can 
justify the Board’s presence through fulfilling the latter, then it’s more likely to keep the Board. 
It may turn out that we meet far less frequently. But more importantly, the role for the Board in 
a progressive environment is to come up with solutions.  
 
Jerry Cummins stated that in Walla Walla, the Department of Ecology required a filtration 
system because of cryptosporidium. The difference between a PWB loan versus going out to the 
open bond market was significant for their small jurisdiction. It’s the difference between forty-
eight dollars and forty cents. Diane Pottinger interjected that yes, Tacoma got a lot of money 
out of the fund, but they also put a lot of money back in with taxes. Access needs to be fair. 
 
Pam Carter asked if the focus of the retreat is what we’ve been talking about? Stan Finkelstein 
replied that the vision he had is that if we try to design the retreat as a committee it’s going to 
be difficult. We are having a large discussion now. I propose that Cecilia Gardener send out a 
survey asking for board member input. Sometime prior to the retreat, the 5 members of the 
Executive Committee will go through all the requests, and try to put together 2 days of retreat 
that reflects how we can optimally spend our time dealing with all the issues. 
 
Pam Carter stated that she does not expect us to reinvent the wheel in two days. But we can 
have some fruitful discussions that go beyond what we do here.  
 
Stan Finkelstein replied that we have time to come up with recommendations that can be 
presented to the 2016-2017 session of the legislature. Once we come up with a conclusion – say 
October 2015 – we can start working those issues. 
 
Cecilia Gardener stated that process wise, you have approximately 1 year to develop your 
package to present in July 2016.  
 
Lisa Wellman stated that we sit here because there are funds allocated for us to meet as a 
board. Stan Finkelstein replied that we have a budget for the 13-15 biennium, which ends June 
30, 2015. In both the House and Senate budgets, there is an administrative budget for the next 
biennium. Wellman stated that we could propose new legislation for the next biennium. 
Gardener replied that if you decide to do something that requires additional authority, you can 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 8 of 10 

propose legislation to grant the Board that authority.  
 
Lisa Wellman stated that she feels that she hasn’t fulfilled any substantive role on the Board. 
She thought she’d be working on a loan list, but she didn’t. She voted on contract extensions, 
but she would be happy for someone else to take care of that. She feels that if we had a fund to 
administer and the fiduciary responsibility over it – that would be substantive; the way we are 
currently functioning doesn’t do that. If we were to have a loan list, she would like us to review 
the process and policies surrounding that. Stan Finkelstein replied that he thinks Wellman has 
encapsulated the dichotomy that is going to occur at the retreat.  
 
Diane Pottinger stated that her frustration on the loan list is that staff spent time on it, but the 
Board was totally blind. She didn’t know where we were, and then the Governor totally changed 
it. What was the point of our meeting in August if the Governor can go and change it? What is 
the point, if the legislature is going to pick it apart anyway?  
 
Cecilia Gardener stated that you are a policy/rule-making board. Beating the drum of “give us 
our money back,” is a dead issue. We tried, the associations tried, our partners spoke up for us, 
there wasn’t a hue and cry; it was an expedient way for the legislature to achieve their goal. So 
what else can we do? She thinks there are small jurisdictions that need capacity building, things 
other than loan making that we can provide. Lisa Wellman asked if we need a Board to do that? 
She’d sooner put the administrative money used to support this Board out into the field for that 
sort of work.  
 
Pam Carter wants to address how to assist in infrastructure, rather than try to perpetuate the 
Board. Do we really think that the State has a responsibility to help in infrastructure? If we 
believe that, we need to restate that, and that should be the basis for coming up with a solution 
in how to assist in infrastructure programs. Stan Finkelstein replied that we need to create a 
mechanism to assist that initial basic need. Carter said that as a Board we need to decide if that 
is our premise, and then make that the bedrock of what we are going to do. We need to be very 
explicit about our assumptions before we move forward.  
 
JC Baldwin stated that we don’t have the authority to disband the Board. Lisa Wellman replied 
that we could resign en masse.  
 
Stan Finkelstein asked the Board if they were satisfied with the process of defining the agenda 
for the retreat? It was generally agreed that the Board was satisfied and the discussion ended. 

 
OUTREACH ACTIVITIES 

1) South Sound Academy – Jacki Skaught gave an after action report on the South Sound Academy that 
was held in Tacoma on April 22, 2015. It was successful, according to the attendees. Skaught 
thanked Stan Finkelstein, Ed Hildreth, and Pam Carter for being there. Also in attendance were Mark 
Barkley, Cecilia Gardener, and Jeff Wilson. That impressed the attendees. There were 66 
participants. No one complained about anything except the sandwiches, and we all complained 
about that. Skaught is working on a follow up with the speakers. The facility was lovely; it was a bit 
small, but we could hear everywhere in the room.  



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 9 of 10 

 
Skaught also attended the Green River/Cushman Trail ribbon cutting. This trail runs from South 
Tacoma to Lake Cushman. Representative Derek Kilmer was instrumental in getting funding for that 
project. They were pleased that someone from the Board was there.  
 
Skaught also attended the Green River Filtration System ribbon cutting with Stan Finkelstein, Bubba 
Scott, Mark Barkley, Cecilia Gardener, and Jacque Andresen. There were many partners in that, 
including Tacoma, Lakehaven, Covington, Kent, etc. A lot of people thanked us for being there. The 
PWAA money helped the project go in ways it wouldn’t have without that funding. Covington was 
under a building moratorium until this project was completed.  

2) Public Works Management Certification Advisory Committee Update: Lynn Kohn gave an update on 
the Advisory Committee for the Online Training Initiative. The Committee had a meeting yesterday 
afternoon. They went over the survey we sent out to the jurisdictions with 20,000 and under 
population asking for their input on whether this would be valuable training. There appears to be 
lots of interest in a comprehensive training program. The funding is still up in the air. The Senate 
budget has $250,000 to develop the program, but nothing there for ongoing funding. There was 
conversation yesterday about going back for a supplemental budget request next session. The 
Committee talked at length about putting together some sessions at IACC, and vetting the program 
there. Cecilia Gardener interjected that SBCTC is still interested in doing some activities at IACC, 
even if the budget doesn’t get passed this time around. It will give us good feedback with which we 
can decide if this is a viable program. Kohn stated that a smaller working group will be meeting soon 
to develop that.  

3) Small Communities Initiative Quarterly Report: Cathi Read gave the Board a little background on the 
Small Communities Initiative. It is a two-person program:  Jon Galow is in Spokane; Cathi Read is 
here. It is funded by multiple entities, including CDBG, and the Departments of Health and Ecology. 
They have a steering committee that meets quarterly, made up of all the funding entities. Pam 
Carter interjected that she was interested to see the list of communities that SCI is working with. 

 
INFORMATION & OTHER ITEMS  

1) Board Committee Updates: 

a) Executive Committee Report: Stan Finkelstein reported that the Executive Committee did not 
meet.  

b) Policy & Program Development Committee Report: Scott Hutsell reported that the Policy 
Committee did not meet.  

c) Technical Assistance Committee Report: Jerry Cummins reported that the Technical Assistance 
Committee did not meet. A registration flyer for the upcoming utility rate setting workshop was 
passed out. 

d) Communication Committee Report: Ed Hildreth reported that the Communications Committee 
did not meet.  

2) Board Member Updates:  Stan Finkelstein noted that Ted Carlson will be leaving the Board, and this 
is his last meeting. He acknowledged Ted for his outstanding service to this Board. As you know, 



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
1011 Plum ST SE / PO Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

Minutes of May 8, 2015 Meeting Page 10 of 10 

replacements to this Board work at glacial speed. We’re still waiting two years later for a 
replacement for Steve Stuart in the County position. 
 
Diane Pottinger stated that she heard the Governor is declaring the entire state is in a drought 
situation. This will have a severe impact to us here in Puget Sound where we do have water. The 
statewide message may be to conserve water. She believes Seattle and other jurisdictions are 
meeting with the Department of Ecology today to see if they can get that language changed. If we 
have a 10-20% drop in our revenue, it will impact our ability to move forward with projects.  
 

ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to adjourn the meeting. Pam Carter seconded the motion. MOTION 
APPROVED 9-0 (Baldwin, Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Hildreth, Hutsell, Pottinger, Scott, and Wellman). 
Meeting Adjourned at 11:21 am. 



TAB B 
CONTRACTING 





 
 

DATE:  June 22, 2015 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Jill Nordstrom, Drinking Water Program Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Project Completion Extension Requests 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends extending the contract project completion dates as follows:  
 

Program 
 

Client Contract No. Project 
Loan/Grant 

Amount 
Available to 

Draw  

Original 
Closeout 

Date  

Current 
Closeout 

Date 

Proposed 
Closeout 

Date 
DWSRF Marion Water 

Company  
DP09-952-046 New Well 

and 
Reservoir 

$811,030 $305,398.33 8/17/12 8/17/15 2/28/16 

 
Reason for Extension Request:  The process of hiring a new engineering firm took longer than anticipated.  The reservoir has 
been completed.  The water main is out for bid with the start of construction scheduled for early July.  Project is 50% complete. 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND - The client has requested an extension to their project completion date.  Staff evaluated the request 
through a staff peer review process.  DOH has been consulted and agrees with extending the DWSRF project. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

July 10, 2015 
Board meeting  

 





 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date: June 16, 2015 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Jill Nordstrom, Drinking Water Program Manager 
 
Subject: Correction to Interest Rate for Port Townsend DWSRF Loan DM15-952-036    
 (DOH 2014-008) 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Recommend loan rate be revised to 1% 

 
Project Description: Mandated LT2ESWTR Drinking Water Treatment Facility 
  
Original Loan Amount: $5,053,250 
    
Project Status:   
The contract for this project has not been executed and the project not started.   
 
History:  
The DWSRF Loan list was approved at the December Public Works Board Meeting and revised during 
the January meeting.  After reviewing the list and the Department of Health loan criteria, an  
administrative error on this particular loan was identified.   
 
Port Townsend’s board approved loan rate is 1.5%.  Based upon their affordability index and the 
application of subsidy to this loan, the loan rate should be 1.0% 
 
Action: 
Revise the loan rate from 1.5% to 1.0% for DM15-952-036 (2014-008). 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

July 10, 2015 
Board Meeting 




	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

